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CHARS500
Online

For new annual filings,
and amendments

Annual Filing for Charitable Organizations

New York State Office of the Attorney General
Charities Bureau - Registration Section
28 Liberty Street
New York, NY 10005

charitiesnys.com

Open to Public

Inspection

Filing Type: ® New Filing

OAmendment

Filing Year: 2024

General Information

Current Organization Name: CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS INC Updated Name: N/A

NY Registration Number: ~ 03-19-40 Registration Category: ~ DUAL
Organization Type: Corporation EIN: 222187522
Current Fiscal Year End: 06/30 Updated Fiscal Year End: N/A

ALECIA.ONEILL@CHENANGOARTS.ORG

Organization's Phone: 607-336-2787

Organization Email:

Tax Exempt Status:

501(c)(3)

Website: WWW.CHENANGOARTS.ORG

Organization Address

Mailing Address

Principal Address NY State Address

27 W MAIN ST # 8
NORWICH

NY

13815-1611
UNITED STATES

27 W MAIN ST # 8 NA
NORWICH

NY

13815-1611
UNITED STATES

Primary Contact Information

First Name: Stephen

First Name: i i ive Di
irst Name: Alecia Last Name: Oneill Title: Executive Director
Phone: 607-336-2787 Email: Alecia.Oneill@chenangoarts.org

Organization Type

Type of IRS document filed with IRS:  1RS990 Organization Type: Public

Third Party Preparer Information

Last Name: Locke Title: Accountant

Firm Name:

Farrow & Locke CPA Associates, PLLC

Phone: 607-233-4144 Email: slocke@farrowlockecpas.com

Third Party Address

Street: 116 E Main St,Ste 3

City: Norwich

State: NY

Zip: 13815

Country: United States
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Registration Category

1. Does the organization conduct activity in New York State other than soliciting? This may include, but is not limited

to, maintaining an office, having employees or staff, or running a program.

®ves ONo
2. Does the organization have assets in New York State?
®Yes ONo

3. Isthe organization incorporated or formed in New York State?

®Yes ONo

4. Has the organization received more than $25,000 in total contributions from New York State residents,

foundations, corporations or government agencies or other entities in the period covered by this filing?

®Yes ONo

5. Does the organization plan to receive more than $25,000 annually in total contributions from New York State residents,

foundations, corporations, government agencies or other entities?

®Yes (QONo

6. Does the organization use a professional fundraiser or fundraising counsel?

OYes ®No

Based on your responses to the above questions, this organization's registration category remains as DUAL

Contribution Information

1. Did the organization solicit or receive contributions during the fiscal year in New York State?

®@Yes ONo

3. Choose the total contributions in New York State this fiscal year:  $100,000-$249,000

Annual Exemptions

1. Were the total contributions from New York State, including residents, foundations, government agencies, etc. under
$25,000 during the fiscal year?

OYes ONo NJ/A

2. Did the organization use a professional fundraiser or fundraising counsel during the fiscal year?

OYes ONo N/A

3. Were the organization’s gross receipts under $25,000 and the market value of its assets under $25,000 during the
fiscal year?

OYes @No

Based on your responses to annual exemption questions, this organization is required to file under _ DUAL  during this
fiscal year.
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Financial Information

Type of IRS document filed with IRS IRS990 Organization's total revenue: 261,508
Organization's total contributions: 168,080 Organization's total assets: ~_N/A
Organization's net assets: 1,325,557 Organization's total revenue N/A

and contributions:
Organization's total liabilities: N/A

Organization's total assets/ N/A
Organization's total income: N/A worth:

For this filing year, does your organization plan to complete any of the following with the New York State Charities Bureau?
OClosing O withdrawing O Dissolving [ None

Is this your final filing with New York State? OYes ONo N/A

Filing Information

Did your organization use a professional fundraiser or fundraising counsel for fundraising activity in New York State?

Oves ®nNo
General Information Description of Services Description of Compensation
Name of Firm: N/A N/A N/A
Type: N/A Reg Number: N/A
Contract Start: N/A Contract End: N/A
Amount Paid: N/A Phone : N/A

Mailing Address: N/A

Name of Firm: N/A N/A N/A
Type: N/A Registration ID: N/A
Contract Start: N/A Contract End: N/A
Amount Paid: N/A Phone : N/A

Mailing Address: N/A

N/A N/A

Name of Firm: NA

Type: NIA Registration ID: N/A

Contract End:
Contract Start: N/A N/A

Amount Paid: NA Phone : w/a

Mailing Address: N/A
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Did the organization receive government grants during this fiscal year?

®@Yes ONo

Government Grant Agency

Grant Amount

New York State Council on the Arts $40,000.00
Chenango County Board of Supervisors $10,000.00
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

O

O o o o

IRS document

Certified Public Accountant's Audit Report

Certified Public Accountant's Review Report

Attached organization's required documents:

Complete Certificate of Amendment or other document amending the name

Other documents

We certify under penalties of perjury that we reviewed this report, including all attachments, and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, they are true, correct and complete in accordance with the laws of the State of New York
applicable to this report.

Role

ASGLALA0LE94EQ,

First Name Last Name Email
Executive Director |Alecia ONeill alecia.oneill@chenangoarts.org
Treasurer Roy Fuller rfuller55.rf@gmail.com
Signature of PocuSigned by: Date: 11/26/2025
Executive Directo ALECTA OMNeTLL
EAGCASEEDDD B E—
Signed by:
Signature of { W\ Date:
/Z 11/26/2025
Treasurer
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~n 990

PUBLIC DISCLOSURE COPY
Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)
Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

NYS REG NO.

Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

03-19-40

OMB No. 1545-0047

2024

Open to Public
Inspection

A For the 2024 calendar year, or tax year beginning  JUL 1, 2024 andending JUN 30, 2025
B Check if C Name of organization D Employer identification number
applicable:
ohange | CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS
’c\‘r?ﬂf;e Doing business as 22-2187522
ratuen Number and street (or P.0. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite | E Telephone number
Fral, | 27 W MAIN STREET #8 607-336-2787
e City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code G _Gross receipts $ 330 ’ 303.
Amended]  NORWICH, NY 13815 H(a) Is this a group return
[_]&88"=* | F Name and address of principal officer: ALECIA ONEILL for subordinates? [ Ives No
pending SAME AS C ABOVE H(b) Are all subordinates included? \:|Yes ‘:l No
|_Tax-exempt status: 501(c)(3) [ 1501(c)( ) (insertno.) [ ] 4947(a)(1)or [ ] 527 If "No," attach a list. See instructions
J Website: WWW.CHENANGOARTS.ORG H(c) Group exemption number

K_Form of organization; Corporation [ ] Trust [ ] Association [ ] Other
Summary

IPartI

| L Year of formation: 197 5| m State of legal domicile: N'Y

Part Il

Signature Block

o| 1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities: TO SUPPORT LIFE-ENRICHING ART
e THROUGHOUT THE GREATER CHENANGO REGION
g 2 Check this box \:| if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
% 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 15
g 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1b) . . ... 4 15
@ 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2024 (Part V, line2a) .. ... 5 2
:E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if NneCesSary) 6 4
%G| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIIl, column (C), line 12 7a 0.
< b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T, Part |, line 11 .. . . ... 7b 0.
Prior Year Current Year
ol 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 104,095. 168,080.
g 9 Program service revenue (Part VIIl, line2g) 16,266. 30,250.
2| 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), lines 3, 4, and 7d) 40 , 575. 19 , 795.
€1 11 Other revenue (Part VIll, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c, and 11e) 31,800. 43,383.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIIl, column (A), line 12) ... 192 , 7 36. 261 ,5 08.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) . 7,025. 2,000.
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0. 0.
gl 15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part X, column (A), lines 5-10) 81,388. 80,831.
2| 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line11e) . 0. 0.
é’. b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) 8,082. |
Wl 17 Other expenses (Part IX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 11f24e) ... 125,714. 191,036.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) 214,127. 273,867.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 18 from line 12 -21,391. -12,359.
‘5% Beginning of Current Year End of Year
% 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 1,573,711. 1,604,050.
<3 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26) 286,143. 278,493.
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from line 20 1,287,568. 1,325,557.

Under penalties of perjury, | declare that | have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my knowledge and belief, it is
true, correct, and complete. Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

Sign Signature of officer Date
Here ALECIA ONEILL, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Type or print name and title

Preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check (1| PTIN
Paid  |STEPHEN J. LOCKE sitenpioie: [P01654690
Preparer |Firm'sname FARROW & LOCKE CPA ASSOCIATES PLLC Firm'sEIN 33-1655350
Use Only |Firm'saddress 116 E MAIN STREET SUITE 3

NORWICH, NY 13815 Phoneno.607-233-4144

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? See instructions

- Yes - No

LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.

432001 12-10-24

Form 990 (2024)
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Ppage?2
| Part lll | Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Il \:|

1  Briefly describe the organization’s mission:

TO SUPPORT LIFE-ENRICHING ART THROUGHOUT THE GREATER CHENANGO REGION

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the

Prior FOMM 990 OF 990-EZ? .. e [ Ives [XINo
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program services? \:|Yes No

If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4  Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by expenses.
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others, the total expenses, and
revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 1 0 5 ) 9 6 4 ®_including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 3 8 y 6 1 1 o )
PERFORMANCES PROGRAM - THE ORGANIZATION SPONSORS VARIOQUS PLAYS AND
PERFORMANCES FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE COMMUNITY.

4b (Code: )(Expenses$ 34 I 19 1 . including grants of $ ) (Revenue$ 42 8 . )
VISUAL ARTS PROGRAM - THE ORGANIZATION PROVIDES AND MANAGES A GALLERY
FOR ARTISTS TO DISPLAY THEIR WORK.

4c  (Code: ) (Expenses $ 2 0 )i 9 5 9 ®_including grants of $ 2 ) 0 0 O o ) (Revenue$ 9 y 9 2 7. )
ARTS IN EDUCATION - THE ORGANIZATION SEEKS TO INTEGRATE ARTS INTO THE
SCHOOL SYSTEM

4d Other program services (Describe on Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of § ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses 161,114.

Form 990 (2024)

432002 12-10-24
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 3
[Part VT Checklist of Required Schedules
Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)?
I£"YeS," complete SCREAUIE A .............c e 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors? See instructions 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to candidates for
public office? If "Yes," complete SChedule C, Part | .................co oo 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h) election in effect
during the tax year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part Il ....................co o oo 4 X
5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues, assessments, or
similar amounts as defined in Rev. Proc. 98-197 |f "Yes," complete Schedule C, Part lll ....................ccoocv oo 5 X
6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the right to
provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? /f "yes," complete Schedule D, Part | 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part Il ....................c..ocoooveeeei. 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? Jf "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE D, Pt Il _..........o\\\.\oooo\ oo 8 X
9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability; serve as a custodian for
amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt negotiation services?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IV ... 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in donor-restricted endowments
or in quasi-endowments? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part V... 10| X
11 If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII, VIII, IX, or X,
as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10? /f "Yes," complete Schedule D,
PAFE VI oo 11a| X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments - other securities in Part X, line 12, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VI ... oo 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments - program related in Part X, line 13, that is 5% or more of its total
assets reported in Part X, line 16? f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part VIl .....................coo oo 11c X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15, that is 5% or more of its total assets reported in
Part X, line 167 Jf "Yes, " complete SChedule D, Part IX ..............c..ccoo oo 1d| X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X 11e | X
f Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? |f "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X ............ 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? |f "Yes," complete
SCHEAUIE D, Parts XI NG XUl .................oo.. o ooooooooooo oo 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes, " and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and Xll is optional ............... 12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E ... 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? ..~ 14a X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising, business,
investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments valued at $100,000
or more? |f "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts | QNG IV ...............c.oo oo 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for any
foreign organization? jf "Yes," complete Schedule F, Parts Il and IV . 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other assistance to
or for foreign individuals? Jf "Yes, " complete Schedule F, Parts il and IV ... . ... 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part IX,
column (A), lines 6 and 11e? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I. See instructions ... 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part VIII, lines
1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete SChedule G, Part Il ....................c..coo oo 18 | X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? f "Yes,"
complete SChEAUIE G, Part Il ...................ccco oo 19 X
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? f "Yes," complete Schedule H ...................coccoooooeieieee 20a X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? Jf "Yes " complete Schedule | Parts land Il oo 21 X

432003 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 4
[Part IV Checklist of Required Schedules ontinued)
Yes | No
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part X, column (A), line 2? f "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts 1 and Il ... 2 | X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5, about compensation of the organization’s current
and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIB J ... 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000 as of the
last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 |f "Yes," answer lines 24b through 24d and complete
Schedule K. If "NO," GO 10 liN8 258 .............c.coo oo 24a X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year to defease
any tax-exemPpt DONAS? | 24c
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during theyear? 24d
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | .................ccccoociiceeeeeei. 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior year, and
that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE Ly PAt | _....oo\. oo\ oo 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5 or 22, for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il ... 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to any current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee,
creator or founder, substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity (including an employee thereof) or family member of any of these persons? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Partlil ......... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties? (See the Schedule L, Part IV,
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, key employee, creator or founder, or substantial contributor? jf
"Yes," complete SChedUIE L, Part IV ...................ccccoo oo 28a X
b A family member of any individual described in line 28a? |f "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part IV ....................ccoocvooeeeee . 28b X
c A 35% controlled entity of one or more individuals and/or organizations described in line 28a or 28b? |f
"Yes," complete SCheaUIE L, Part IV ...................ccccoo oo 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in noncash contributions? /f "Yes," complete Schedule M 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified conservation
contributions? Jf "Yes," complete SCREAUIE M .....................coo oo 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? |f "Yes," complete Schedule N, Part | .................. 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? |f "Yes," complete
SCREAUIE Ny PAIE Il ...\ oo\ oo 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-37 |f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part | .................c.ccooio oo 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part Il Ill, or IV, and
Part V, 18 T .ooo.. oo 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled entity
within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? /f "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN€ 2 ... 35b
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related organization?
If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V, liN@ 2 ... ... e 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? Jf "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part VI .................... 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations on Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 19?
Note: All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 | X
[Part V] Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line inthisPartVv. . . \:|
Yes | No
1a Enter the number reported in box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable 1a 7
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included on line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable 1b 0
¢ Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable gaming
(gambling) winnings to prize winners? . 1c | X

432004 12-10-24

Form 990 (2024)
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Form 990 (2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 5
| Part V] Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance (continued)
Yes | No
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax Statements,
filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return 2a 2
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? 2 | X
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? .. 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? jf "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation on Schedule O ......................... 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority over, a
financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial account)? 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts (FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T? 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the organization solicit
any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions? 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts
were not tax deductible? 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c). |
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and services provided to the payor? | 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was required
TO il FOIMN 2827 e, 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . | 7d | |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? 7e X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? ... .. ... ... 7f X
g [f the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? . | 7g X
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C? 7h X
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the |
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time during theyear? 8 X
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. |
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section 4966? 9a X
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? 9b X
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line12 . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from members or shareholders 11a
b Gross income from other sources. (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources against
amounts due or received from them.) 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? 12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued duringtheyear .................. 12b
13  Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in more than one state? . 13a
Note: See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which the
organization is licensed to issue qualified health plans 13b
¢ Enterthe amount of reserves on hand 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year? 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? [f "No," provide an explanation on Schedule O .......................... 14b
15 Is the organization subject to the section 4960 tax on payment(s) of more than $1,000,000 in remuneration or
excess parachute payment(s) during the year? 15 X
If "Yes," see the instructions and file Form 4720, Schedule N. |
16 Is the organization an educational institution subject to the section 4968 excise tax on net investment income? 16 X
If "Yes," complete Form 4720, Schedule O. |
17  Section 501(c)(21) organizations. Did the trust, or any disqualified or other person engage in any activities
that would result in the imposition of an excise tax under section 4951, 4952 or 4953? 17
If "Yes," complete Form 6069. |

432005 12-10-24
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522  Page6
art Governance, Management, and Disclosure. ro,cach "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No" response

to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes on Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis Part VI

Section A. Governing Body and Management

1a

b
2

3

6
7a

b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders, or

8
a
b

9

Yes [ No

Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of thetaxyear . ... 1a 15
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or if the governing
body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar committee, explain on Schedule O.

Enter the number of voting members included on line 1a, above, who are independent 1b 15

Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any other

officer, director, trustee, or key employee? 2 X

Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct supervision

of officers, directors, trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?

bl badte

Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets?
Did the organization have members or stockholders?
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or

o (o b |

more members of the governing body? 7a | X

persons other than the governing body? 7b X
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the year by the following: |
The governing body? . |8 | X
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governing body? sb | X

Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the

organization’s mailing address? Jf "Yes " provide the names and addresses on Schedule QO i 9 X

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13
14
15

16a

Yes [ No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? 10a X

If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters, affiliates,
and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization’s exempt purposes? 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? 11a| X
Describe on Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990. |
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? Jf "No," go to line 13 ..............c.oocoioeoe 12a X

Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give rise to conflicts? 12b

Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? /f "Yes," describe

on Schedule O how this WAS GONE ... ... 12¢
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? 13 X

Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? 14 X

Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by independent
persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?

The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management official 15a | X

Other officers or key employees of the organization 15b | X

If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process on Schedule O. See instructions.
Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement with a

taxable entity during the year? 16a X

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its participation

in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the organization’s

exempt status with respect to such arrangements? 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed _ NY
Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (1024 or 1024-A, if applicable), 990, and 990-T (section 501(c)(3)s only) available
for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.
Own website \:| Another’s website Upon request \:| Other (explain on Schedule O)
Describe on Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and financial

statements available to the public during the tax year.
State the name, address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the organization’s books and records

ALECIA ONEILL - 607-336-2787
27 W MAIN STREET #8, NORWICH, NY 13815

432006 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522  Page?
art VIl| Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VII

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees
1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.
® | ist all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of compensation.
Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.
® | ist all of the organization’s current key employees, if any. See the instructions for definition of "key employee."
® | st the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (box 5 of Form W-2, box 6 of Form 1099-MISC, and/or box 1 of Form 1099-NEC) of more than
$100,000 from the organization and any related organizations.
® | jst all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
® | st all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the organization,
more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.
See the instructions for the order in which to list the persons above.

\:l Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

(A) (B) (€) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average | . o dz SKSIrzlo?:than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(list any % the organizations compensation
hours for | = . = organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related é g ) g (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| = [ 5 £ 1099-NEC) and related
below Elel.]E18E = organizations
line) HHEHEESE
(1) ALECIA ONEILL 40.00
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR X 42,182. 0. 0.
(2) DENISE REPPERT 1.00
PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(3) MEGAN MCKOWN 1.00
VICE PRESIDENT X X 0. 0. 0.
(4) ROY FULLER 1.00
TREASURER X X 0. 0. 0.
(5) SARAH GREEN 1.00
SECRETARY X X 0. 0. 0.
(6) JIM BALDWIN 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(7) JONI EATON 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(8) LISA FEIGENBAUM 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(9) ELAINE GENUTE 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(10) GREG LAMONICA 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(11) ALYSSA CHAWGO 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(12) MARY EL EMERSON 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(13) VIRGINIA LEE 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(14) WHITNEY MCCRACKEN 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(15) JOSEPH SKUNDRICH 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.
(16) KELLY REPPERT 1.00
DIRECTOR X 0. 0. 0.

432007 12-10-24 Form 990 (2024)
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 8
II art UII | Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
(do not check more than one
hours per | pox, unless person is both an compensation compensation amount of
week officer and a director/trustee) from from related other
(istany | & the organizations compensation
hours for | 5 B organization (W-2/1099-MISC/ from the
related § Z g (W-2/1099-MISC/ 1099-NEC) organization
organizations| £ | < g e 1099-NEC) and related
below 2|22 = organizations
b Subtotal 42,182. 0. 0.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VIl, Section A . ... ... 0. 0. 0.
d Total (add lines tband 1¢) ... oo 42,182. 0. 0.

2  Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of reportable

compensation from the organization 0
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee on |
line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for SUCh INAIVIAUAI  ....................c.co oo 3 X
4  For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the organization |
and related organizations greater than $150,000? /f "Yes," complete Schedule J for such individual ... 4 X

5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for services |

rendered to the organization? Jf "Yes " complete Schedle J for QUG DO SO 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of compensation from
the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year.

(A) (B) (€
Name and business address NONE Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100.000 of compensation from the organization 0

Form 990 (2024)
432008 12-10-24
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 9
| Part VIIl | Statement of Revenue
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIl |:|
(A) (B) (€

Total revenue

Related or exempt
function revenue

Unrelated
business revenue

(D)
Revenue excluded
from tax under
sections 512 - 514

g 1 a Federated campaigns . 1a
o b Membershipdues 1b 2,495.
3 ¢ Fundraising events 1c
g. d Related organizations 1id
& e Government grants (contributions) | 1e 50,000.
_5. f All other contributions, gifts, grants, and
3 similar amounts not included above | 1f 115,585.
."E g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f 1g $ 2 0 7 O 0 8 .
3 h_Total. Addlinestadtf 168,080,
Business Code
g | 2a ADMISSIONS 711110 19,895. 19,895.
s b PROGRAM WORKSHOP FEES 711110 10,355. 10,355.
b c
£ d
o f All other program service revenue . .
g Total. Addlines2a2f 30,250, |
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, and
other similar amounts) 11 ’ 815. 11 ’ 815.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds
5 Royalties ... oo
(i) Real (i) Personal
6 a Grossrents 6al 18,716.
b Less: rental expenses . [6b 0.
¢ Rental income or (loss) 6c| 18,716.
d Net rental incomeor (10sS) ... 18,716. 18,716.
7 a Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory |7a| 69,498.
b Less: cost or other basis
] and sales expenses 7b| 61,518.
§ ¢ Gainor(loss) .. 7c 7,980.
& d Net gain or (I0SS) ... 7,980. 7,980.
E 8 a Gross income from fundraising events (not
o including $ of
contributions reported on line 1c). See
PartIV,lne 18 gal 27,310.
b Less: direct expenses sb| 7,277.
¢ Net income or (loss) from fundraising events ... 20 ’ 033. 20 ’ 033.
9 a Gross income from gaming activities. See
Part IV, line19 . . 9a
b Less: direct expenses 9b
¢ Net income or (loss) from gaming activities  .......................
10 a Gross sales of inventory, less returns
and allowances . 10a
b Less: cost of goods sold 10b|
c_Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory
Business Code |
24 11a PROGRAM ADVERTISING 541800 4,634. 4,634.
g0
g4 ©
§ d Allotherrevenue
e Total. Add lines 11a-11d 4,634. |
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions ... 261,508. 48,966. 0.] 44,462.

432009 12-10-24
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 page 10
[ Part IX'| Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX ...l
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, Total e!;‘genses Progragr?)service Managég)ent and Funcgg)ising
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIll. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line 21
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 2,000. 2,000.
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15and 16
4 Benefits paid to or for members .
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees 40,628. 24,377. 13,813. 2,438.
6 Compensation not included above to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) 32,008. 19,205. 10,883. 1,920.
7 Othersalariesandwages . ...
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions)
9 Other employee benefits 1,762. 1,058. 598. 106.
10 Payrolitaxes 6,433. 3,860. 2,187. 386.
11 Fees for services (nonemployees):
a Management
b Legal 275. 275.
¢ Accounting 17,087. 17,087.
d Lobbying .
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17
f Investment managementfees 2,895, 2,895.
g Other. (If line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25,
column (A), amount, list line 11g expenses on Sch 0.) 46,444. 46,444,
12 Advertising and promotion 8,205. 8,205.
13 Officeexpenses 3,794. 2,2717. 1,289. 228.
14 Informationtechnology . ...
15 Royalties .
16 OCCUPANCY 60,275. 36,190. 21,081. 3,004.
17 Travel
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials .
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings .
20 Interest 5,219. 5,219.
21 Paymentsto affiliates ..
22  Depreciation, depletion, and amortization 20,496. 13,733. 6,763.
23 Insurance 5,835. 5,835.
24  Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above. (List miscellaneous expenses on line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column (A),
amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule 0.)
a PROGRAM SUPPLIES 11,970. 11,970.
b COMMUNICATIONS AND INFO 7,505. 7,505.
¢ DUES AND SUBSCRIPTIONS 1,036. 1,036.
d
e All other expenses
25  Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 273,867. 161,114. 104,671. 8,082.
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the organization

reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation.
Check here [ it following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

432010 12-10-24
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Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 page 11
[Part X | Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X ... \:|
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interestbearing 11,791.] 1 15,565.
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 9 , 403.| 2 9 ’ 308.
3 Pledges and grants receivable,net 20,008.] 3 20,008.
4  Accounts receivable, net 4 2 , 800.
5 Loans and other receivables from any current or former officer, director,
trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
controlled entity or family member of any of these persons ... ... ... 5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined
under section 4958(f)(1)), and persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) ... 6
@ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
ﬁ 8 Inventories for sale or use 8
< 9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 9
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or other
basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 710,532.
b Less: accumulated depreciation 531,275. 194,356.] 10c 179,257.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities 401,482.( 11 422,356,
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11 . 12
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 . 13
14 Intangibleassets 14
15  Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 936,671.| 15 954,756.
16 _ Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (mustequalline33) ... 1,573,711.] 16 1,604,050.
17  Accounts payable and accrued expenses 17
18  Grants payable | . 18
19 Deferred reVenUE 19
20 Tax-exempt bond liabilities 20
21  Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of ScheduleD 21
o | 22 Loans and other payables to any current or former officer, director,
é trustee, key employee, creator or founder, substantial contributor, or 35%
% controlled entity or family member of any of these persons 22
= | 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 62,340.| 23 62,340.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D 223,803.]| 25 216,153.
__l2e 286,143.] 26 278,493,
Organizations that follow FASB ASC 958, check here
§ and complete lines 27, 28, 32, and 33.
§ | 27 Netassets without donor restrictions . 544,716.] 27 558,445.
@ | 28  Net assets with donor restrictions 742,852.| 28 767,112,
g Organizations that do not follow FASB ASC 958, check here \:|
'-'; and complete lines 29 through 33.
g 29 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds ... 29
% | 30 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipment fund . 30
2 31 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds . 31
g 32 Total net assets or fund balances 1,287,568.| 32 1,325,557.
33 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances ... 1,573,711.]| 33 1,604,050.
Form 990 (2024)

432011 12-10-24




Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Form 990 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 page 12
| Part Xl | Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part Xl ...
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12) 1 261,508.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25) 2 273,867.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtract line 2 from lined 3 -12,359.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 32, column (&) 4 1,287,568.
5 Netunrealized gains (losses) on investments 5 24,423.
6 Donated services and use of facilities 6
T INVESTMENt OXPONSES 7
8 Prior period adjUsStments 8
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain on Schedule O) . . 9 25,925.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 32,
COIUMIN (B)) it iiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 10 1,325,557.
[ Part XII| Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII .. \:|
Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: \:| Cash Accrual \:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain on Schedule O.
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a| X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
Separate basis \:| Consolidated basis \:| Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . 2b X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate basis,
consolidated basis, or both:
\:| Separate basis \:| Consolidated basis \:| Both consolidated and separate basis
c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the audit,
review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? . . 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain on Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Uniform Guidance, 2 C.F.R. Part 200, Subpart F? 3a X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the required audit
or audits, explain why on Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits 3b
Form 990 (2024)
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. . . OMB No. 1545-0047
ifr:igs LEA Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 2024
4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522

]_Part | | Reason for Public Charity Status. (all organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)
1 \:| A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).
2 \:| A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990).)
\:| A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).
\:| A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the hospital’s name,
city, and state:

0

4]

0 00 B0 O

An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public described in
section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part I1.)

An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college

or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or

university:

10 An organization that normally receives (1) more than 33 1/3% of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross receipts from
activities related to its exempt functions, subject to certain exceptions; and (2) no more than 33 1/3% of its support from gross investment
income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975.
See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part Ill.)

11 \:| An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).

12 \:| An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of one or
more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3). Check the box on
lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12¢, 12f, and 12g.

a \:| Type |. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the supporting
organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.

b \:l Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c \:l Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.

d \:l Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)
that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e \:| Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type II, Type llI
functionally integrated, or Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organization.

f Enter the number of supported Organizations |
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).
(i) Name of supported (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization | (iv)Is the organization listed [ (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of other
o (described on lines 1-10 in your governing document? . R . R
organization support (see instructions) | support (see instructions)

above (see instructions)) Yes No

Total
LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. 432021 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page2
- Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Ill. If the organization
fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)
Section A. Public §upport
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not

include any "unusual grants.") 82,314.| 121,384. 78,426.| 124,103.| 168,080.| 574,307.

2 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

4 Total. Add lines 1 through 3 82,314.)121,384.| 78,426.| 124,103.]| 168,080.| 574,307.

5 The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included
on line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11,

coumn(® 174,966.
6 _Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4. 399,341.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
7 Amountsfromline4 82,314.| 121,384.| 78,426.|124,103./168,080.| 574,307.

8 Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,

and income from similar sources __ 8,766. 9,927.| 11,388.| 11,703.] 11,815.| 53,599.

9 Net income from unrelated business

activities, whether or not the

business is regularly carried on 14,995. 13,607. 15,647. 18,946. 18,716. 81,911.

10 Other income. Do not include gain

or loss from the sale of capital

assets (Explainin Part V1) 4,402. 2,864.| 17,483.| 25,503. 50,252.
11 Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 760,069.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (see instructions) 12 | 185,115.

13 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)

organization, check this box and stop here ... BSOSO U UV VU NU UV U OO l:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 6, column (f), divided by line 11, column (f) 14 52.54 «
15 Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part Il, line 14 15 77.35 %
16a 33 1/3% support test - 2024. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box and

stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization

b 33 1/3% support test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization \:|

17a 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2024. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is 10% or more,
and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the organization
meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . ... \:|
b 10% -facts-and-circumstances test - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line 15 is 10% or
more, and if the organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test, check this box and stop here. Explain in Part VI how the
organization meets the facts-and-circumstances test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . .
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see instructions
Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 page3
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il. If the organization fails to
gualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.")

2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services per-
formed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that is related to the
organization’s tax-exempt purpose

3 Gross receipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or bus-
iness under section 513

4 Tax revenues levied for the organ-
ization’s benefit and either paid to
or expended on its behalf

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

6 Total. Add lines 1 through 5

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and
3 received from disqualified persons

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3 received
from other than disqualified persons that
exceed the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year

c Add lines 7a and 7b

8 Public support. (Subtractline 7¢ from line 6
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) (a) 2020 (b) 2021 (c) 2022 (d) 2023 (e) 2024 (f) Total
9 Amounts fromline6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties,
and income from similar sources
b Unrelated business taxable income
(less section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975

c Add lines 10a and 10b

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included on line 10b,
whether or not the business is
regularly carriedon

12 Other income. Do not include gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part V1) ----........

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11, and 12.)

14 First 5 years. If the Form 990 is for the organization’s first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3) organization,

checkthis boxand stop here ... ... ... o i l:|
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2024 (line 8, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part Il line 15 ... ..o 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2024 (line 10c, column (f), divided by line 13, column (f)) . 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2023 Schedule A, Part Ill, line17 18 %
19a 33 1/3% support tests - 2024. [f the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 is not

more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization \:|

b 33 1/3% support tests - 2023. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 33 1/3%, and

line 18 is not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization = \:|

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions _.......................... [ ]

432023 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Pagea
l Eart “_’ | Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a box on line 12 of Part I. If you checked box 12a, Part |, complete Sections A

and B. If you checked box 12b, Part I, complete Sections A and C. If you checked box 12c, Part |, complete

Sections A, D, and E. If you checked box 12d, Part |, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes [ No

1 Are all of the organization’s supported organizations listed by name in the organization’s governing
documents? Jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by

class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1
2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status

under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported

organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2
3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
lines 3b and 3c below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? /f "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the

organization made the determination. 3b

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? |f

"Yes," and if you checked box 12a or 12b in Part I, answer lines 4b and 4c below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? |f "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion

despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)

pUrposes. 4c
5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? /f "Yes,"

answer lines 5b and 5¢ below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (ii) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action

was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). Sa
b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already

designated in the organization’s organizing document? 5b
c Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization’s control? 5c

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (j) its supported organizations, (i) individuals that are part of the charitable class
benefited by one or more of its supported organizations, or (jii) other supporting organizations that also
support or benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? Jf "Yes," provide detail in

Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(as defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with

regard to a substantial contributor? Jf "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 7
8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described on line 77?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990). 8

9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more
disqualified persons, as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described

in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined on line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which

the supporting organization had an interest? Jf "Yes, " provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined on line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit

from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? /f "yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type |l supporting organizations, and all Type Ill non-functionally integrated

supporting organizations)? Jf "Yes, " answer line 10b below. 10a
b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
. A business holdings.) 10b
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 pages
] Part IV | Supporting C-)rganizations (continued)
Yes | No
11 Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described on lines 11b and
11c below, the governing body of a supported organization? 11a
b A family member of a person described on line 11a above? 11b
c A 35% controlled entity of a person described on line 11a or 11b above? /f "Yes" to line 11a, 11b, or 11c,
provide detail in Part VI. 11c
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations
Yes | No
1 Did the governing body, members of the governing body, officers acting in their official capacity, or membership of one or
more supported organizations have the power to regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization’s officers,
directors, or trustees at all times during the tax year? jf "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s)
effectively operated, supervised, or controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported
organization, describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove officers, directors, or trustees were allocated among the
supported organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1
2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? Jf "Yes," explain in
Part VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
—supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2
Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations
Yes | No
1 Were a majority of the organization’s directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization’s supported organization(s)? /f "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
______the supported organization(s). 1
Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations
Yes | No
1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization’s tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior tax
year, (i) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of the
organization’s governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously provided? 1
2 Were any of the organization’s officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (i) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? |f "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2
3 By reason of the relationship described on line 2, above, did the organization’s supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization’s investment policies and in directing the use of the organization’s
income or assets at all times during the tax year? /f "Yes, " describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard 3
Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (see instructions).
a \:| The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 pelow.
b \:| The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c \:| The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a governmental
entity (see instructions).
2 Activities Test. Answer lines 2a and 2b below. Yes | No

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If "Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined

that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described on line 2a, above, constitute activities that, but for the organization’s involvement,
one or more of the organization’s supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? |f "Yes," explain in
Part VI the reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in

these activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer lines 3a and 3b below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or

trustees of each of the supported organizations? If "Yes" or "No," provide details in Part VI. 3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each

of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in_Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
432025 01-14-25 Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
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22-2187522 Ppage6

] PartV | Type lll Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations

1 D Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 ( explain in Part VI). See instructions.

All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.

Section A - Adjusted Net Income

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

Net short-term capital gain

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

Other gross income (see instructions)

Add lines 1 through 3.

Depreciation and depletion

a|h 0N [=

o (o1 b | N (=

Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)

)]

7 Other expenses (see instructions)

~

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4)

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount

(A) Prior Year

(B) Current Year
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see
instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):

Average monthly value of securities

1a

Average monthly cash balances

1b

Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets

1c

Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1¢)

1d

o | |0 [T |®

Discount claimed for blockage or other factors

Jp_lamdela_/ in_Part VI):

Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets

w

Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

w

H

see instructions).

Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 0.015 of line 3 (for greater amount,

Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

Multiply line 5 by 0.035.

Recoveries of prior-year distributions

0 [N |O O

Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

0 [N O |0 |~

Section C - Distributable Amount

Current Year

Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, column A)

Enter 0.85 of line 1.

Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, column A)

Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

Income tax imposed in prior year

G |h N [=

o (o1 b | N (=

Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to
emergency temporary reduction (see instructions).

6

~

instructions).

\:l Check here if the current year is the organization’s first as a non-functionally integrated Type Ill supporting organization (see

432026 01-14-25
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024
l P |

CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS

22-2187522 Pagez

artV | Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions Current Year
1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes 1
2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity 2
3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations 3
4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets 4
5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required - provide details in Part VI) 5
6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions. 6
7 _Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6. 7
8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part V). See instructions. 8
9 Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6 9
10__Line 8 amount divided by line 9 amount 10
(i) (ii) (iii)
Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions) Excess Distributions U"de;:_jzgég‘it'ons An[::)sl:;':’;";fglgz‘t

Distributable amount for 2024 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2024 (reason-
able cause required - explain in Part VI). See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2024

From 2019

From 2020

From 2021

From 2022

From 2023

Total of lines 3a through 3e

Applied to under distributions of prior years

b= (o I b B [ TN o M [ N [ i [V}

Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Carryover from 2019 not applied (see instructions)

-

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from line 3f.

Distributions for 2024 from Section D,
line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

b _Applied to 2024 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from line 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2024, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result greater
than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2024. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2025. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2020

Excess from 2021

Excess from 2022

Excess from 2023

® | |0 [T |®

Excess from 2024

432027 01-14-25
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Schedule A (Form 990) 2024 CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 pages

| Part Vi | Supplemental Information. provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part Il, line 17a or 17b; Part lll, line 12;
Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢c, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C,
line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b, 3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V,
Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E, lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information.
(See instructions.)
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CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522
Identification of Excess Contributions

Schedule A Included on Part I, Line 5 2024
** Do Not File **
*** Not Open to Public Inspection ***
Contributor's Name Contributions Contributions
MOTZ FAMILY FOUNDATION 45,000. 29,799.
INBT BANK 77,000. 61,799.
GREATER NORWICH FOUNDATION 24,000. 8,799.
R&A WILLARD CHARITABLE FQOUNDATION 76,871. 61,670.
PREFERRED MUTUTAL 28,100. 12,899.
Total Excess Contributions to Schedule A, Part I, Line 5 174,966.

423171 04-01-24
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SCHEDULE D Supplemental Financial Statements

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, OMB No. 15450047

(Rev. December 2024) Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b. _

Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990. Open tq Public

Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522

] Part | | C-)rganizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete if the

organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

a A ON =

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)

Aggregate value of grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised funds
are the organization’s property, subject to the organization’s exclusive legal control? \:| Yes \:| No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used only
for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose conferring

impermissible private benefit? |:| Yes |:| No
l Part Il | Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

Q 060 T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).

\:| Preservation of land for public use (for example, recreation or education) \:| Preservation of a historically important land area

\:l Protection of natural habitat \:l Preservation of a certified historic structure

\:| Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation easement on the last

day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year
Total number of conservation easements 2a

Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b

Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included on line2a .. ... . ... 2c

Number of conservation easements included on line 2¢ acquired after July 25, 2006, and not

on a historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the tax
year
Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of
violations, and enforcement of the conservation easements it holds? \:| Yes \:| No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2d above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section 170(h)(4)(B)(ii)?
In Part Xlll, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement and

balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes the

organization’s accounting for conservation easements. - - _
- Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

1a

If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works
of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide in Part XllI the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under FASB ASC 958, to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet works of
art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public service,
provide the following amounts relating to these items.

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIIl, ine 1 $
(ii) Assetsincludedin Form 990, Part X $
2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide
the following amounts required to be reported under FASB ASC 958 relating to these items:
a Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIIl, line1 $
b _Assetsincluded in Form 990, Part X $
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
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Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12.:2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Ppage?2
] Part 1M | Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that make significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply).
a \:| Public exhibition d \:| Loan or exchange program
b \:| Scholarly research e \:| Other
c \:| Preservation for future generations

4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose in Part XIlI.
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets
to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? ... . |:| Yes |:| No

-Part IV | Escrow and Custodial Arrangements Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or
reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.

1a Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian, or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not included
on Form 990, Part X? \:| Yes \:| No

b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xlll and complete the following table:

Amount
€ Beginning balance ic
d Additions during the year 1d
e Distributions during the year 1e
f Endingbalance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? \:l Yes \:l No
b_If "Yes ' explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been providedin Part XIIl ... |:|
l PartV |Endowment Funds Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back | (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
1a Beginning of year balance ... .. 410,885, 396,427, 390,224, 462,602, 400,193,
b Contributions 2,000,
¢ Net investment earnings, gains, and losses 44,218, 37,019, 28,498, -47,967. 85,441,
d Grants or scholarships . ...
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs 20,544, 19,821, 19,621, 23,374, 20,010,
f Administrative expenses 2,895, 2,740, 2,674, 3,037, 3,022,
g Endofyearbalance 431,664, 410,885, 396,427, 390,224, 462,602,
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment 100 %
b Permanent endowment %
¢ Term endowment %
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) Unrelated organizations? 3a(i) X
(i) Related organizations? 3a(ii) X
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? . 3b
Describe in Part XIIl the intended uses of the organization’s endowment funds.
] Part VI [Land, Buildings, and Equipment
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other (b) Cost or other (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (investment) basis (other) depreciation
Ta Land
b Buidings 0.
¢ Leasehold improvements 507,831. 378,410. 129,421.
d Equipment 202,701. 152,865. 49,836.
e Other ... ... 0.
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 10¢. column B) oo 179,257,

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)

432052 01-02-25



Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12.:2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Ppage3
] Part VII| Investments - Other Securities
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (including name of security) (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives

(2) Closely held equity interests

(3) Other
A)

(B)
(
(

C)

S}

w

(
(
(
(H)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 12, col. (B))

ﬂPart VIIl| Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation: Cost or end-of-year market value

&l
—~

(o}

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(™)
(8)
(9)

Total. (Col. (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, line 13, col. (B))
Part IX| Other Assets

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.

(a) Description (b) Book value
(1 PERPETUAL TRUST HELD BY 3RD PARTY 544,414.
(229 PROMISE TO GIVE - AUDITORIUM 194,640.
(3) OPERATING LEASE ROU ASSET 215,702,
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7
(8)
9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990. Part X. [ine 15, COL (B)) oo ... 954 ,756.
Other Liabilities

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
() ACCRUED PAYROLL EXPENSES 451,
@) OPERATING LEASE LIABILITY 215,702,
4
©)]
(6)
]
()]
©
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, ine 25, €Ol (B)) oovooovoioioiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii 216,153.
2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that reports the
orqani_zation’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FASB ASC 740. Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part XIll ... l:|

Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
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Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12.:2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS

22-2187522 paged

Part XI | Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

1 Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIIl, line 12:
a Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments 2a
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
¢ Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIIl.) L2d
e Addlines 2athrough2d 2e
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3
4  Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VI, line7b . 4a
b Other (Describe inPartXIll.) 4b
c Addlinesdaand db 4c
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This m egual Form 990 Part L line 1 ) 5

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With E Expenses per Return

1 Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements

2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:
Donated services and use of facilities 2a

Prior year adjustments 2b

Other losses 2c

O o 0 T o

Add lines 2a through 2d
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1

4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:
a Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a

2e

b Other (Describe in Part XIIl.) 4b

¢ Add lines 4a and 4b

Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4¢. (This must equal Form 990 Part L line 18

4c

Part Xlll| Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line 2; Part XI,

lines 2d and 4b; and Part Xll, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

PART V, LINE 4:

THE ORGANIZATION HAS ADOPTED INVESTMENT AND SPENDING POLICIES FOR

ENDOWMENT

ASSETS THAT ATTEMPT TO PROVIDE A PREDICTABLE STREAM OF FUNDING TO SUPPORT

THE ORGANIZATION BY ITS ENDOWMENT WHILE SEEKING TO MAINTAIN THE PURCHASING

POWER OF THE ENDOWMENT ASSETS.

TOTAL RETURNS GENERATED BY THE ENDOWMENT FUND MAY BE USED FOR ONGOING

OPERATIONS OF THE ORGANIZATION, BUT MAY NOT EXCEED 5% OF MARKET VALUE OF

THE FUND AT DECEMBER 31 PRIOR TO THE CURRENT YEAREND.

THE PRINCIPAL SHALL NOT BE INVADED IN THE ABSENCE OF CRITICAL OR UNUSUAL

CIRCUMSTANCES AND REQUIRES THE APPROVAL OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AT THE

RECOMMENDATION OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE. EARNINGS NOT USED TO SUPPLEMENT

THE OPERATING BUDGET SHALL BECOME PART OF THE FUND'S PRINCIPAL.

PART XI, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

ROUNDING

PART XII, LINE 2D - OTHER ADJUSTMENTS:

ROUNDING

432054 01-02-25 Schedule D (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities
. . OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
(Rev. December 2024) organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.
Department of the Treasury Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. al;er; :golzublic
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. P
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522
Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17. Form 990-EZ filers are not

required to complete this part.

1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.

a \:| Mail solicitations e \:| Solicitation of nongovernment grants
b \:| Internet and email solicitations f \:l Solicitation of government grants
c \:| Phone solicitations g \:| Special fundraising events

d \:| In-person solicitations
2 a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees, or
key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? \:| Yes \:l No
b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

iii) Did ) (v) Amount paid . .
(i) Name and address of individual N - fEm raiser | (iv) Gross receipts | to (or retained by) (vi) Amount paid
or entity (fundraiser) (ii) Activity have custody | rom activity fundraiser to (or retained by)
10 . .
’ contrbutions? listed in col. (i) organization
Yes | No
Total ..
3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from registration
or licensing.
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
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Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS

22-2187522 Page2

lPart I

Fundralsmg Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more than $15,000

of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1

(b) Event #2

(c) Other events

(d) Total events

11
[Part 1l |

NONE (add col. (a) through
GALA col. (c))
(event type) (event type) (total number)
g
)
3| 1 Grossreceipts 25,155. 25,155.
o
2 Less: Contributions
3 Gross income (line 1 minus line2) ... 25 , 155. 25 , 155.
4 Cashprizes
5 Noncash prizes
[%2]
3
S| 6 Rent/facilitycosts
&
w
‘8‘ 7 Foodandbeverages .
.’Dz
8 Entertainment
9 Other direct expenses 7,277. 7,277.
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9 in column (d) 7, 277,
Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) ..o 17,878.

$15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more than

Revenue

(a) Bingo

(b) Pull tabs/instant
bingo/progressive bingo

(c) Other gaming

(d) Total gaming (add
col. (a) through col. (c))

Direct Expenses

\:|No

\:| Yes

%

%

Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5 in column (d)

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d)

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?
b If "No," explain:

10a Were any of the organization’s gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?
b If "Yes," explain:

432082 01-14-25

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)




Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page3
11 Does the organization conduct gaming activities with nonmembers? \:| Yes \:| No
12 Is the organization a grantor, beneficiary or trustee of a trust, or a member of a partnership or other entity formed
to administer charitable gaming ? \:l Yes \:l No
13 Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
a The organization’s facCility 13a %
b Anoutside facility 13b %

14 Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization’s gaming/special events books and records:

Name
Address
15a Does the organization have a contract with a third party from whom the organization receives gaming revenue? . \:l Yes \:l No
b If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organization $ and the amount

of gaming revenue retained by the third party  $
c If "Yes," enter the name and address of the third party:

Name

Address

16 Gaming manager information:

Name

Gaming manager compensation $

Description of services provided

\:| Director/officer \:| Employee \:| Independent contractor

17 Mandatory distributions:
a Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to
retain the state gaming license? \:l Yes \:l No

b Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations or spent in the

organization’s own exempt activities during the tax year $
Part IV| Supplemental Information. pProvide the explanations required by Part I, line 2b, columns (jii) and (v); and Part Ill, lines 9, 9b, 10b,

15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information. See instructions.

432083 01-14-25 Schedule G (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
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art IV | Supplemental Information .ntinued)

Schedule G (Form 990)
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OME No. 15450047
(Form 990) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
(Rev. December 2024) Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information. o Publi
Department of the Treasur Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. £ i Ll

p: y . . h . . Inspection
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. P
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 6:

THERE SHALL BE THREE CLASSES OF MEMBERS:

INDIVIDUAL - SECTION (1) (A) MEMBERSHIP SHALL BE OPEN TO ANY INDIVIDUAL

WHOIS INTERESTED IN AND SUPPORTS THE PURPOSES OF THE COUNCIL AND WHO SHALL

PAYTHE MEMBERSHIP CONTRIBUTION AS FIXED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. SECTION

(1) (B) EACH SUCH INDIVIDUAL MEMBER SHALL BE ENTITLED TO ONE VOTE ON

EACHMATTER SUBMITTED TO A VOTE OF THE MEMBERS.

NON-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATIONS - SECTION (2) (A) MEMBERSHIP SHALL BE OPEN

TOANY NOT-FOR-PROFIT ORGANIZATION WHICH IS INTERESTED IN AND SUPPORTS

THEPURPOSE OF THE COUNCIL AND WHICH SHALL PAY MEMBERSHIP CONTRIBUTION AS

FIXEDBY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS. SECTION (2)(B) EACH SUCH

NOT-FOR-PROFITORGANIZATION, THROUGH ITS DESIGNATED REPRESENTATIVE, SHALL BE

ENTITLED TOONE VOTE ON EACH MATTER SUBMITTED TO A VOTE OF THE MEMBERS.

BUSINESS MEMBERS - SECTION (3) (A) MEMBERSHIP SHALL BE OPEN TO ANY

BUSINESSWHICH IS INTERESTED IN AND SUPPORTS THE PURPOSE OF THE COUNCIL AND

WHICHSHALL PAY MEMBERSHIP CONTRIBUTION AS FIXED BY THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS.SECTION (3) (B) EACH SUCH BUSINESS THROUGH ITS DESIGNATED

REPRESENTATIVESHALL BE ENTITLED TO ONE VOTE ON EACH MATTERSUBMITTED TO A

VOTE OF THE MEMBERS.

SECTION (4) (A) MEMBERSHIP CONTRIBUTION - THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS SHALL,

ATITS DISCRETION, ESTABLISH THE FEE SCHEDULES FOR THE VARIOUS CLASSES OF

MEMBERSHIP.

SECTION (5) (A) AT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS DISCRETION, OTHER CLASSES

OFMEMBERSHIP MAY BE ESTABLISHED BY A VOTE OF A MAJORITY OF THE BOARD OF

DIRECTORS.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION A, LINE 7A:

EACH MEMBERS IS ALLOWED ONE VOTE AT THE ANNUAL MEETING TO ELECT THE BOARDOF

DIRECTORS. IN LIEU OF AN ANNUAL MEETING, A BALLOT LISTING NOMINEES TOTHE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND A SPACE FOR WRITE-IN NOMINATIONS WILL BE SENT TOTHE

MEMBERSHIP FOR TABULATION PRIOR TO THE JUNE BOARD MEETING.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 11B:

THE RETURN IS GIVEN TO THE PRESIDENT AND TREASURER TO REVIEW. THE

REMAINING BOARD MEMBERS ARE NOTIFIED THAT THE RETURN IS AVAILABLE FOR

REVIEW AT THE OFFICE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 12C:

EVERY YEAR IN NOVEMBER, CONFLICT OF INTEREST FORMS ARE HANDED OUT AT

THEBOARD MEETING AND FILLED OUT AT THAT TIME. THE FORMS ARE KEPT AND

REFERREDTO AS NEEDED ESPECIALLY WHEN BOARD APPROVES DEC FUNDING FOR THE

YEAR. ANYBOARD MEMBER WITH A CONFLICT OF INTEREST IS RECUSED AND DOES NOT

VOTE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION B, LINE 15:

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE REVIEWS EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION ANNUALLY AND ADISCUSSION

IS HELD WITH THE BOARD DURING BUDGETING TIME. PERIODIC UPDATESON

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990) (Rev. 12-2024)
LHA 432211 01-15-25
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Schedule O (Form 990) 2024 Page 2
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522
COMPENSATION IS RECEIVED FROM NATIONAL ADVOCACY/SERVICE ORGANIZATIONSWHICH
IS REVIEWED BY THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION C, LINE 19:
DOCUMENTS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE OFFICE UPON REQUEST

FORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, OTHER FEES:
ARTISTIC FEES AND OUTSIDE SERVICES:

PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 46,444.
MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 0.
FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0.
TOTAL EXPENSES 46,444.
TOTAL OTHER FEES ON FORM 990, PART IX, LINE 11G, COL A 46,444.

FORM 990, PART XTI, LINE 9, CHANGES IN NET ASSETS:
UNREALIZED GAINS ON TRUST 25,925,

432212 01-29-25 Schedule O (Form 990) 2024
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Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

4562 Depreciation and Amortization
Form (Including Information on Listed Property) 990
Attach to your tax return.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service Go to www.irs.qov/Form4562 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0172

2024

Attachment
Sequence No. 179

Name(s) shown on return Business or activity to which this form relates

CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS ORM 990 PAGE 10

Identifying number

22-2187522

|_Part | | Election To Expense Gertain Property Under Section 179 Note: If you have any listed property, complete Part V before you complete Part I.

1 Maximum amount (see iNStructions) 1 1 ’ 220 r 000.
2 Total cost of section 179 property placed in service (see instructions) 2
3 Threshold cost of section 179 property before reduction in limitation 3 3,050,000.
4 Reduction in limitation. Subtract line 3 from line 2. If zero or less, enter -0- . 4
5 Dollar limitation for tax year. Subtract line 4 from line 1. If zero or less, enter -0-. If married filing separately, see instructions ... .. .. . .. ... 5
6 (a) Description of property (b) Cost (business use only) (c) Elected cost
7 Listed property. Enter the amount from line 29 7
8 Total elected cost of section 179 property. Add amounts in column (¢), lines6éand7 8
9 Tentative deduction. Enter the smaller of line 5 orline 8 9
10 Carryover of disallowed deduction from line 13 of your 2023 Form 4562 o 10
11 Business income limitation. Enter the smaller of business income (not less than zero) or line5 .. 11
12 Section 179 expense deduction. Add lines 9 and 10, but don't enter more than line 11 ... 12
13 Carryover of disallowed deduction to 2025. Add lines 9 and 10, less line 12 ... ... ... 13 |
Note: Don't use Part Il or Part lll below for listed property. Instead, use Part V.
I_Part 1] | Special Depreciation Allowance and Other Depreciation (Don’t include listed property.)
14 Special depreciation allowance for qualified property (other than listed property) placed in service during
BN X YO 14
15 Property subject to section 168(f)(1) election 15
16 _Other depreciation (INCIUAINg AC RS ) 16 19.
art MACRS Depreciation (Don’t include listed property. See instructions.)
Section A
17 MACRS deductions for assets placed in service in tax years beginning before 2024 ... ... 17 | 11,480.
18 If you are electing to group any assets placed in service during the tax year into one or more general asset accounts, check here .. . \:l |

Section B - Assets Placed in Service During 2024 Tax Year Using the General Depreciation System

(b) Month and (c) Basis for depreciation
(a) Classification of property year placed (business/investment use (d) Recovery (e) Convention | (f) Method (g) Depreciation deduction
in service only - see instructions) period
19a 3-year property
b 5-year property
c 7-year property
d 10-year property
e 15-year property
f 20-year property
g 25-year property 25 yrs. S/L
) ) / 27.5 yrs. MM S/L
h Residential rental property / 275 yrs. MM SIL
i Nonresidential real property / 89 yrs. MM S
/ MM S/L
Section C - Assets Placed in Service During 2024 Tax Year Using the Alternative Depreciation System
20a Class life S/L
b 12-year 12 yrs. S/L
c 30-year / 30 yrs. MM S/L
d  40-year / 40 yrs. MM S/L
I Part IV | Summary (See instructions.)
21 Listed property. Enter amount from lINe 28 21 15 ’ 267.
22 Total. Add amounts from line 12, lines 14 through 17, lines 19 and 20 in column (g), and line 21.
Enter here and on the appropriate lines of your return. Partnerships and S corporations - seeinstr. ... 22 26,766.
23 For assets shown above and placed in service during the current year, enter the
portion of the basis attributable to section 263Acosts 23
416251 12-20-24 LHA For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see separate instructions. Form 4562 (2024)



Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Form 4562 (2024) CHENANGO COUNTY COUNCIL OF THE ARTS 22-2187522 Page 2

I PartV Listed Property (Include automobiles, certain other vehicles, certain aircraft, and property used for
entertainment, recreation, or amusement.)

Note: For any vehicle for which you are using the standard mileage rate or deducting lease expense, complete only 24a,
24b, columns (a) through (c) of Section A, all of Section B, and Section C if applicable.

Section A - Depreciation and Other Information (Caution: See the instructions for limits for passenger automobiles. )
24a Do you have evidence to support the business/investment use claimed? X | Yes \:| No | 24b If "Yes," is the evidence written? | X | Yes \:| No

(a) ) sl (d) I () (h) B
Type of property ae _pusiness Cost or Basis for depreciation | Regoygry Method/ Depreciation ecte
(list vehicles first) pé%(;sidcén s \r/)%srtcrgstr;tge other basis (bus'”issz/'gr‘fjtmem period Convention deduction SGCTC'%gtWQ

25 Special depreciation allowance for qualified listed property placed in service during the tax year and

used more than 50% in a qualified buSINeSS US€ ... ... ... 25
26 Property used more than 50% in a qualified business use:

THEATER EQUIPM|1013230100.00 %| 62,340.( 62,340.|7.00 [200DB-HY| 15,267.
P %

i %
27 Property used 50% or less in a qualified business use:
% S/L -
% S/L -
i % S/L -
28 Add amounts in column (h), lines 25 through 27. Enter here and on line 21, page 1

29 Add amounts in column (i), line 26. Enter here and on line 7, page 1 ... | 29

Section B - Information on Use of Vehicles
Complete this section for vehicles used by a sole proprietor, partner, or other "more than 5% owner," or related person. If you provided vehicles
to your employees, first answer the questions in Section C to see if you meet an exception to completing this section for those vehicles.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) U]

30 Total business/investment miles driven during the Vehicle 1 Vehicle 2 Vehicle 3 Vehicle 4 Vehicle 5 Vehicle 6
year (don't include commuting miles)

31 Total commuting miles driven during the year

32 Total other personal (honcommuting) miles
driven

33 Total miles driven during the year.
Add lines 30 through 32 .. ...
34 Was the vehicle available for personal use Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
during off-duty hours?

35 Was the vehicle used primarily by a more
than 5% owner or related person?

36 Is another vehicle available for personal

USE D il

Section C - Questions for Employers Who Provide Vehicles for Use by Their Employees
Answer these questions to determine if you meet an exception to completing Section B for vehicles used by employees who aren’t
more than 5% owners or related persons.

37 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits all personal use of vehicles, including commuting, by your Yes No

employees?

38 Do you maintain a written policy statement that prohibits personal use of vehicles, except commuting, by your
employees? See the instructions for vehicles used by corporate officers, directors, or 1% or more owners

39 Do you treat all use of vehicles by employees as personal use?

40 Do you provide more than five vehicles to your employees, obtain information from your employees about
the use of the vehicles, and retain the information received?

41 Do you meet the requirements concerning qualified automobile demonstration use?

Note: If your answer to 37, 38, 39, 40, or 41 is "Yes," don't complete Section B for the covered vehicles.
| Part VI | Amortization

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) "
Description of costs Date amortization Amortizable Code Amortization Amortization
begins amount section period or percentage for this year

42 Amortization of costs that begins during your 2024 tax year:

43 Amortization of costs that began before your 2024 tax year 43

44 Total. Add amounts in column (f). See the instructions for wheretoreport ... .. ... 44
416252 12-20-24 Form 4562 (2024)
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Independent Accountant's Review Report

Board of Directors
Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Norwich, NY

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc (the
Organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the
related statements of activities and net assets, statements of functional expenses, and statements of cash
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily
applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of the Organization's
management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of
an opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the
AICPA. Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting
whether we are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for
them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

We are required to be independent of the Organization and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our reviews.



Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Accountant's Conclusion
Based on our reviews, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the

accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Farrow & Locke CPA Associates PLLC

Norwich, NY
November 26, 2025
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Statements of Financial Position
As of June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash $ 16,823 $ 14,144
Restricted cash and cash equivalents, current 8,050 7,050
Total Cash and cash equivalents 24,873 21,194
Promises to give 20,008 20,008
Accounts receivable, net 2,800 -
Total current assets 47,681 41,202
Property, plant, and equipment, net 179,257 194,356
Investments 422,356 401,482
Promises to give 194,640 197,305
Beneficial interest in trusts 544,414 518,489
Right-of-use assets, operating leases 215,702 220,877
Total assets $ 1,604050 $ 1,573,711
Liabilities and net assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 451 % 2,926
Note payable, current 6,186 62,340
Operating lease liabilities, current 5,376 -
Total current liabilities 12,013 65,266
Debt, noncurrent 56,154 -
Operating lease liabilities, noncurrent 210,326 220,877
Total liabilities 278,493 286,143
Net assets
Net assets with donor restrictions 767,112 742,852
Net assets without donor restrictions 558,445 544,716
Total net assets 1,325,557 1,287,568
Total liabilities and net assets $ 1,604,050 $ 1,573,711
3

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Statements of Activities and Net Assets
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Without Donor With Donor
Restriction Restriction
2025 2025 2025 2024
Support and revenues
Gifts and grants
Contribution revenue $ 83,164 $ 3,000 $ 86,164 $ 102,365
Government grants 50,000 - 50,000 10,000
Other grant revenue 1,100 - 1,100 6,000
Total gifts and grants 134,264 3,000 137,264 118,365
Special events
Special events, gross 31,944 - 31,944 12,824
Cost of direct benefits (7,277) - (7,277) (16)

Special events, net 24,667 - 24,667 12,808

Other revenue:

Admissions 19,895 - 19,895 9,816
Program and workshops 10,355 - 10,355 6,480
Membership fees revenue 2,495 - 2,495 5,735
Rental income 18,716 - 18,716 18,946
Investment return, net 66,871 - 66,871 75,625
Change in beneficial interest in trusts - 25,925 25,925 -
Miscellaneous other income 2,773 - 2,773 -
(expense)

Total other revenue 121,105 25,925 147,030 116,602
Total support and revenues 280,036 28,925 308,961 247,775
Expenses:

Program services 161,114 - 161,114 133,067

Supporting services:

Management and general 101,776 - 101,776 90,282

Fundraising 8,082 - 8,082 8,026
Total expenses 270,972 - 270,972 231,375
Nonoperating activities:

Net assets released from restriction 4,665 (4,665) - -
Changes in net assets 13,729 24,260 37,989 16,400
Net assets at beginning of year 544,716 742,852 1,287,568 1,271,168
Net assets at end of year $ 558,445 $ 767,112 $ 1,325,557 $ 1,287,568

4

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Statements of Cash Flows
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2025 2024
Cash flows from operating activities
Change in net assets $ 37,989 $ 16,400
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by (used
in) operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 20,496 20,406
Net realized and unrealized (gain) loss (32,403) (23,215)
Net (gain) loss on beneficial interests in perpetual trusts (25,925) (15,843)
(Increase) decrease in operating assets:
Accounts receivable (2,800) -
Promises to give 2,665 2,460
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (2,475) (2,727)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (2,453) (2,519)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant, and equipment (5,397) (62,340)
Proceeds from sale of investments 72,948 79,358
Purchases of investments (61,419) (70,264)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 6,132 (53,246)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of notes payable - (20,000)
Proceeds from notes payable - 62,340
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities - 42,340
Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash 3,679 (13,425)
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at beginning of year 21,194 34,619
Cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash at end of year 24,873 21,194
Reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,823 $ 14,144
Current restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,050 7,050
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown in the statement of cash $ 24,873 $ 21,194
flows
Supplemental cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for
Interest 5,219 4,472
Noncash investing and financing activities
Right-of-use assets acquired in exchange for new operating lease liabilities - 225,859
Total supplemental cash flow information $ 5,219 $ 230,331
7

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Nature of Organization

Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc (the "Organization") is a not-for-profit organization established
to support and encourage participation in and appreciation for the arts and humanities in
Chenango County. The Organization is governed by a Board of Directors and employs a
professional staff to conduct its daily activities.

b. Basis of Accounting

The financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP).

c. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

d. Reclassifications

As a result of changes in accounting principles, certain amounts in the prior period financial
statements have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation. These
reclassifications had no effect on increase (decreases) in net assets.

e. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months
or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, cash equivalents
consisted primarily of money market accounts and certificates of deposit.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The Organization maintains cash balances at U.S. banks, which are insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) for up to $250,000 for each institution. The Organization’s cash
balances may at times exceeded federally insured limits. The Organization has not experienced any
losses and does not believe it is exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash

equivalents. At June 30, 2025, the Organization’s cash accounts did not exceed federally insured
limits.

f. Restricted Cash

Amounts included in restricted cash represent time and purpose restrictions imposed by donors
and grantors. The restriction will lapse when the restriction is satisfied. The restricted cash
accounts are invested in checking and savings accounts, totaling $8,050 and $7,050 as of June 30,
2025 and 2024, respectively.

g. Promises to Give Receivable

Unconditional written promises to give (contributions) are recognized as an asset and contribution
revenue in the period received. Promises to give are recorded at net realizable value and are
discounted at an appropriate rate commensurate with the risks involved. Amortization of
discounts is recorded as additional contribution revenue in accordance with donor-imposed
restrictions, if any, on the contributions . An allowance for uncollectible promises to give is
estimated by the Organization based on factors such as collectability and aging. Conditional
promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend, which consist of both
a barrier and a right of return or release, are met.

h. Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Adjustments to reflect increases or decreases in fair value,
referred to as unrealized gains and losses, are reported in the statements of activities and net
assets .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Gains and losses on the sale of investments are determined using the specific identification
method. Realized gains and losses arising from the sale of investments and ordinary income from
investments are reported as changes in net assets without donor restrictions unless their use is
restricted by explicit donor-imposed stipulations or law. Dividend and interest income are accrued
as earned. Income and net gains (losses) on investment of endowment funds are reported in the
statements of activities and net assets as follows:

« Asincreases (decreases) in net assets without donor restrictions for Board-designated
endowment funds;

« Asincreases (decreases) in net assets with donor restrictions if the terms of the gift that
gave rise to the investment require that they be added to the principal of a permanent
endowment fund; or

« Asincreases (decreases) in net assets without donor restrictions in all other cases.

The investment portfolio is managed by professional investment advisors and managers in
accordance with the Organization’s investment policy.

i. Beneficial Interest in Perpetual Trusts

The Organization is the beneficiary of certain perpetual trusts held and administered by others.
The Organization’s percentage of the fair value of the underlying trust assets, which approximates
the present value of estimated future cash flows to be received from the trusts, is recognized as
assets and contribution revenue at the dates the trusts were established. Distributions from the
trusts are recorded as investment income and the carrying value of the assets is adjusted for
changes in the fair value of the underlying trust assets.

j- Property, Plant, and Equipment

Property, plant, and equipment is recorded at cost. Expenditures for additions, improvements, and
other enhancements to property, plant, and equipment are capitalized, and minor replacements,
maintenance, and repairs that do not extend asset life or add value are charged to expense as
incurred. When property, plant, and equipment assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the
related cost and accumulated depreciation is removed from the accounts and any resulting gain or
loss is included in results of operations.

10

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

In general, depreciation is the systematic and rational allocation of an asset's cost, less its residual
value (if any), to the periods it benefits. Property, plant, and equipment is depreciated using the
straight-line method, which results in depreciation expense being incurred evenly over the life of
an asset. The estimated useful lives for each major depreciable classification of property, plant,
and equipment are as follows: buildings and improvements: 15 - 40 years, furniture and fixtures: 5
- 7 years, and machinery and equipment: 5 - 7 years. The Organization's estimate of depreciation
expense incorporates management assumptions regarding the useful economic lives and residual
values of the Organization's assets. The Organization periodically reviews and adjusts, as
appropriate, the residual values and useful lives of its assets.

The Organization reports gifts of property, plant, and equipment as net assets without donor
restrictions unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts
of long-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of
cash or other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted
support. Absent explicit donor stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be
maintained, the Organization reports expirations of donor restrictions when the donated or
acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

k. Leases

The Organization is a lessee in multiple noncancelable operating leases. Right-of-use ("ROU")
assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the lease commencement date based on the present
value of the future lease payments over the expected lease term. The ROU asset is also adjusted
for any lease prepayments made, lease incentives received, and initial direct costs incurred.

The Organization has elected to use a risk-free rate for a term similar to the underlying lease as the
discount rate if the implicit rate in the lease contract is not readily determinable.

The lease liability is initially and subsequently recognized based on the present value of future
lease payments. Variable payments are included in the future lease payments when those variable
payments depend on an index or a rate. Changes to variable lease payments due to subsequent
changes in an index or rate and variable lease payments not dependent on an index or a rate are
recorded as variable lease expense in the period in which they are incurred.

11

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The ROU asset for operating leases is subsequently measured throughout the lease term at the
amount of the remeasured lease liability (i.e., present value of the remaining lease payments),

plus unamortized initial direct costs, plus (less) any prepaid (accrued) lease payments, less the

unamortized balance of lease incentives received, and any impairment recognized.

For all underlying classes of assets, the Organization has elected to not recognize ROU assets and
lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less at lease
commencement and do not include an option to purchase the underlying asset that the
Organization is reasonably certain to exercise. The Organization recognizes short-term lease cost
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Organization receives lease income for the leasing of the auditorium or other space to various
organization on an as needed basis. No long-term agreements exist for the leasing of these
spaces. Lease income for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 was 18,716 and 18,946,
respectively.

. Net Assets

Net assets and revenues, expenses, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or
absence of donor restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the Organization and changes therein are
classified and reported as follows:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed

restrictions and may be expended for any purpose in performing the primary objectives of the
Organization. These net assets may be used at the discretion of the Organization's management
and Board of Directors (the Board). Net assets without donor restrictions include net assets
designated by the board for specific purposes.

12

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions: Net assets subject to stipulations imposed by donors and
grantors. Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by

actions of the Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in
nature, whereby the donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity. All net assets
restricted by donors as to either timing or purpose of the related expenditures or required to be
maintained in perpetuity as a source of investment income are accounted for in net assets with
donor restrictions. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction
ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions.

m. Revenue Recognition

The Organization recognizes revenue when goods or services promised are transferred to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Organization expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services by following a five-step process: (1) identify the
contract with a customer, (2) identify the performance obligations in the contract, (3) determine
the transaction price, (4) allocate the transaction price, and (5) recognize revenue when or as the
Organization satisfies a performance obligation, as further described below. Revenue subject to
variability is constrained to an amount which will not result in a significant reversal in future
periods when the contingency that creates variability is resolved.

Revenue Recognition Process

Identify the Contract with a Customer

The Organization generally considers a product or service provided to customers as a customer
contract provided that collection is considered probable, which is assessed based on the
creditworthiness of the customer as determined by credit checks, payment histories, and/or other
circumstances. The Organization combines contracts with a customer if contracts are negotiated
with a single commercial substance or contain price dependencies.

13

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Identify the Performance Obligations in the Contract

Product performance and service performance obligations include admissions, memberships,
workshops and gallery sales.

Determine the Transaction Price

The transaction price for the Organization’s contracts with its customers consists of varying
prices provided it is probable that a significant reversal of revenue will not occur when the
uncertainty related to variable consideration is resolved. The Organization generally invoices
customers for products sold at time of delivery, and services either upfront or upon meeting
certain milestones. Customer invoices are generally due at the point of sale. The Organization’s
contracts with customers typically do not include significant financing components as the period
between the transfer of performance obligations and timing of payment are generally within one
year.

Allocate the Transaction Price to the Performance Obligations in the Contract

For contracts that contain multiple performance obligations, the Organization allocates the
transaction price to the performance obligations on a relative standalone selling price basis.
Standalone selling prices are based on multiple factors including, but not limited to, historical
discounting trends for products and services, pricing practices in different geographies and
through different sales channels, gross margin objectives, internal costs, competitor pricing
strategies, and industry technology lifecycles.

Recognize Revenue when or as the Organization Satisfies a Performance Obligation

Revenue for sales of products are recognized at a point in time, which is generally upon shipment
or delivery.

The following significant revenue-generating transactions are within the scope of ASC 606, which
are presented in the statements of activities and net assets :

14

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Membership Dues - The Organization recognizes revenue at the time dues are collected. Any

portion of the membership fee for future benefits is classified as a contract liability (deferred
revenue, membership) on the statements of financial position . Prices for membership vary based
on the level of membership and the benefits associated with each level. Due to the timeframe
over which membership dues are earned, all contract liabilities are earned in the subsequent year.

Admission Charges - The Organization recognizes revenue from admissions charges when a
customer purchases tickets. The price for tickets varies based on event and the age of the

customer.

Gallery Sales - The Organization recognizes revenue from gallery sales at the time of sale. The
gallery includes items for purchase such as artwork and handmade items from regional artists,
including pottery, photography, quilting, woodworking, oil paintings, fine knitting, jewelry, and
historical books. The price varies based on the item purchased.

Fees and Other Income - Fees and other income mainly include revenues from programs hosted by

the Organization. Programs are held throughout the year and can vary from a wide audience with
corporate sponsorships to small training events with minimal charges for participation. Revenue
from these programs is recognized at the time of the corresponding program is concluded at the
estimated net realizable value. Any payments received in advance for future programs are
classified as deferred revenue on the statements of financial position.

n. Contributions and Grants

Contributions - Contributions received are recorded as net assets without donor restrictions or net
assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor-imposed
restrictions. Donor restricted contributions are reported as an increase in net assets with donor
restrictions, depending on the nature of the restriction. When a restriction expires (that is, when a
stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished), net assets with donor
restrictions are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements
of activities and net assets as net assets released from restrictions.

15

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Grants - Grants are deemed to be nonexchange (nonreciprocal) transactions and fall under the
contribution accounting guidance. Under this guidance, revenue related to conditional grants and
contracts is recorded when the conditions are met. Most grants are on a cost reimbursement basis
and require the Organization to incur eligible expenses prior to the release of funds. The
Organization reports these grants as changes in net assets without donor restrictions when
restrictions are met in the same period. Unexpended amounts received but not yet earned are
reported as deferred revenue.

The Organization applies the practical expedient as allowed for within the accounting standards
and, therefore, does not disclose information about remaining performance obligations that have
original expected durations of one year or less. All remaining performance obligations will be
satisfied in connection with completion of the year ending June 30, 2025.

Contributed Nonfinancial Assets - Contributed nonfinancial assets are recorded at fair value at the

date of donation. Contributions of services are reported as revenue only if the services create or
enhance a nonfinancial asset or would typically need to be purchased by the Organization if they
had not been provided by contribution, require specialized skills, and are provided by individuals
with those skills. See Note for additional disclosure.

o. Donated Services and Materials

Donated services are recognized as contributions if the services:
1. create or enhance nonfinancial assets or
2. require specialized skills, are performed by people with those skills and would otherwise be
purchased by the Organization.
Many volunteers donate time to the Organization throughout the year which is not recognized as
contributions in the financial statements since the recognition criteria is not met.

16
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Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

p. Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the Organization's program and other activities have been summarized on a
functional basis in the statements of activities and net assets. Expenses related directly to program
services or supporting activities are charged directly while other expenses that are common to
several functions are allocated based on management's estimates, among major classes of
programs services and supporting activities. Expenses that are allocated include occupancy,
depreciation, and amortization, which are allocated on a square footage basis, as well as salaries
and wages, benefits, payroll taxes, professional services, office expenses, information technology,
interest, insurance, and other, which are allocated on the basis of estimates of time and effort.

g. Fundraising Events

Fundraising events revenue represents a reciprocal transaction equal to the cost of direct benefits
to donors with the remainder representing contribution revenue. During the year ended June 30,
2025 and 2024, the Organization incurred fundraising expenses that directly benefited donors in
the amount of $7,277 and $16 respectively. These direct expenses have been presented as a
reduction of fundraising event revenue in the statements of activities and net assets.

r. Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expense was $8,205 and $5,250 in 2025
and 2024, respectively.

s. Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Governmental Authorities

The State of New York imposes a sales tax of 4% and the counties can impose their own rate on all
of the Organization's sales to nonexempt customers. The Organization collects sales tax from
customers and remits the entire amount to the State. The Organization's accounting policy is to
exclude the tax collected and remitted to the State from revenues and expenses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

t. Income Taxes

The Organization is a not-for-profit organization as described in Section 501(c)3 of the Internal
Revenue Code and is exempt from federal and state income taxes on trade or business profits
generated by activities related to the Organization's exempt function. The Organization may be
subject to federal and state income taxes for profits generated from trade or business activities
unrelated to the Organization's exempt function. The Organization has processes presently in place
to ensure the maintenance of its tax-exempt status, identify and report unrelated business
income, and determine its filing and tax obligations in jurisdictions for which it has nexus. As of
June 30, 2025 and 2024, the Organization believes that it has not generated any unrelated
business taxable income.

The Organization recognizes the tax benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is “more likely
than not” that the tax position would be sustained on examination by the taxing authorities, based
upon the technical merits of the position. The amount recognized is the largest amount of tax
benefit that has a greater than 50% likelihood of being realized upon examination. Interest

and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are classified as income tax expense.

Generally, the Organization is no longer subject to U.S. federal, state, and local or non-U.S. income
tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2021.

u. Fair Value Measurements

The Organization measures certain financial instruments at fair value on a recurring basis at each
reporting period. Certain assets are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis annually or
when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the assets may not
be recoverable. Fair value is estimated as the amount that would be received from the sale of an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

Fair value estimates involve uncertainty and significant judgment regarding interest rates, credit
risk, prepayments, and other factors, especially when quoted prices are unavailable. Changes in
assumptions or market conditions could significantly affect these estimates.
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Fair Value Hierarchy

Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value are measured and classified in accordance with a fair
value hierarchy consisting of three “levels” based on the observability of valuation inputs:

« Level 1: Fair value measurements based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
that the Organization has the ability to access for identical assets or liabilities. Market price
data generally is obtained from exchange or dealer markets. The Organization does not
adjust the quoted price for such instruments.

« Level 2: Fair value measurements based on inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 2
inputs include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets; quoted prices
for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active; and inputs other
than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and
yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

« Level 3: Fair value measurements based on valuation techniques that use significant
unobservable inputs. Both observable and unobservable inputs may be used to determine
the fair values of positions classified in Level 3. The circumstances for using these
measurements include those in which there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or
liability. Therefore, the Organization must make certain assumptions about the inputs a
hypothetical market participant would use to value that asset or liability.

The Organization maximizes the use of observable inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable
inputs when measuring fair value. Financial instruments with quoted prices in active markets
generally have more pricing observability and require less judgment in measuring fair value.
Conversely, financial instruments for which no quoted prices are available have less observability
and are measured at fair value using valuation models or other pricing techniques that require
more judgment. Pricing observability is affected by a number of factors, including the type of
financial instrument, whether the financial instrument is new to the market and not yet
established, the characteristics specific to the transaction, liquidity and general market conditions.
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In certain cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability may fall into
different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In such cases, the level in the fair value hierarchy within
which the fair value measurement in its entirety falls is determined based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

2. Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The Organization’s financial assets available for general use at June 30, consist of the following:

2025 2024

Financial assets available:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,873 $ 21,194

Investments 422,356 401,482

Promises to give 214,648 217,313
Total financial assets available 661,877 639,989
Less

Donor-restricted cash (8,050) (7,050)

Donor-restricted promises to give (214,648) (217,313)

Endowment funds, board-designated for specific purposes (431,664) (410,885)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditures $ 7,515 $ 4,741

within one year

The Organization’s working capital and cash flows fluctuate during the year due to the timing of cash
receipts and major contributions. As part of the Organization’s liquidity management, it has a policy
to structure its financial assets to be available as its general expenditures, liabilities and other
obligations come due. The Organization invests cash in excess of daily requirements in readily
available marketable securities. In the event of an unanticipated liquidity need, the

Organization could draw upon $80,000 from an available line of credit.

The Organization has a board-designated endowment. Annually, the Organization can appropriate up
to 5% of the endowment, based on the endowments fair market value, at the end of the fiscal year.
Appropriations of $21,583 from the endowment will be available within the next 12 months.
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The Organization's board-designated endowment had a fair market value of $431,664 and
$Amount at June 30, 2025 and 2024 (Note 14). While the Organization has no current intention to
draw upon these funds, other than the planned annual appropriation as discussed above, amounts
from the board-designated endowment could be made available, if necessary, after Board action.
However, the board-designated endowment contains investments subject to lock-up provisions that
would reduce the total investments that could be made available.

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The following is a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown in the
statements of cash flows at June 30:

2025 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash $ 16,823 $ 14,144
Current restricted cash and cash equivalents 8,050 7,050
Total cash, cash equivalents, and restricted cash shown in the $ 24,873 $ 21,194

statement of cash flows

4. Property, Plant, and Equipment

The historical costs of the Organization's property, plant, and equipment and related accumulated
depreciation balances at June 30 were as follows:

2025 2024

Property, plant, and equipment, gross

Machinery and equipment $ 123,123 % 123,123

Leasehold improvements 507,831 507,831

Furniture and fixtures 79,578 74,181
Property, plan, and equipment, gross 710,532 705,135
Less Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Accumulated depreciation and amortization, leasehold improvements (531,275) (510,779)
Property, plant, and equipment, net $ 179,257 % 194,356
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Depreciation expense related to property, plant, and equipment was $20,496 and $Value for the
year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Property purchased with federal funds may, in accordance with grantor agreements, be required to be
returned to the federal government. However, because day-to-day control lies with the grantee, such
assets have been included in the statements of financial position.

5. Receivables

Accounts receivable consist primarily of amounts due from short-term rentals of the Organization’s

auditorium for events, performances, and community programs. Rental income is recognized when

earned, and receivables are recorded when amounts are invoiced and deemed collectible. Accounts
receivable consists of the following:

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024
Accounts receivable: $ 2,800 $ -

6. Promises to Give

The Organization leases an auditorium at an annual rental of $1, which is below the fair rental value
of the auditorium. Therefore, the landlord made a contribution to the Organization when the lease
was signed. The fair rental value has been estimated to be approximately $3 per square foot as
determined by an appraisal conducted prior to the commencement of the lease. The unconditional
promise to give as of June 30, 2025 represents the present value of the fair market value of this
leased facility. See notes 7 & 8 for additional information.

Promises to Give consist of the following at June 30:
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2025 2024
Promises to Give, net
Receivable within one year $ 20,008 $ 20,008
Receivable in one to five years 100,040 100,040
Receivable in more than five years 393,483 413,491
Promises to Give, gross 513,531 533,539
Less discount to net present value (298,883) (316,226)
Promises to Give receivable, net $ 214,648 $ 217,313

The discount rate used to measure the net present value was 8% at June 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

7. Leases

The Organization leases its office and gallery space for a monthly payment of $1,125. The lease
expires February 28, 2050.

The Organization also leases an auditorium under a lease expiring February 28, 2050 for one dollar
per year. See notes 6 & 8 for additional information related to this lease.

Components of lease expense were as follows for the year ended June 30:

2025 2024
Operating lease cost:
Cash lease payments $ 13,500 % 14,625
Non-cash contribution 20,008 20,008
Total Operating lease cost $ 33,508 % 34,633

Information regarding lease terms and discount rates as of June 30 is as follows:
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2025
Weighted-average remaining lease term (years):
Operating leases 24.8
Weighted-average discount rate (%):
Operating leases 3.8
2025 2024
Operating leases:
Operating lease ROU assets $ 215,702 $ 220,877
Other current liabilities 5,376 -
Operating lease liabilities 210,326 220,877
Total operating lease liabilities $ 215,702 % 220,877
Maturities of lease liabilities are as follows as of June 30, 2025:
Operating
2025 Auditorium Office Space Leases
2026 $ 1 $ 13,500 $ 13,501
2027 1 13,500 13,501
2028 1 13,500 13,501
2029 1 13,500 13,501
2030 1 13,500 13,501
Thereafter 20 265,500 265,520
Total lease payments 25 333,000 333,025
Less unamortized discount (10) (117,313) (117,323)
Total lease liabilities $ 15 $ 215,687 $ 215,702
24
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8. Contributed Nonfinancial Assets

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the Organization received the use of an auditorium under a
lease agreement for $1 per year. The estimated fair market value of the donated use of space is
$20,008 annually, based on an appraisal conducted prior to lease commencement.

Of this amount, $17,343 was recognized as contribution revenue, and $2,665 was applied to reduce
the previously recorded promise to give receivable. The contributed space is used for mission-related
programming, including performances, workshops, and community events. No donor-imposed
restrictions apply to the use of the space. See notes 6 & 7 for additional information.

9. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

Accounts payable and accrued expenses consisted of the following at June 30:

2025 2024
Accounts payable and accrued expenses:
Trade accounts payable $ 137 % -
Accrued payroll and related benefits 314 2,926
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses $ 451 $ 2,926

10. Retirement Plan

The Organization sponsors a Simple IRA plan for its employees receiving at least $5,000 in
compensation. Employees may contribute to the plan. The Organization matches employee
contributions, up to 3% of annual compensation for eligible participants. There was no participation
in the plan for the and $Value for the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
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11. Debt

Current Debt

On December 21, 2023, the Organization entered into a bridge loan agreement with a bank to provide
temporary financing for the acquisition of sound equipment for use in the Organization’s Theater. The
loan was initiated in anticipation of reimbursement from New York State under the Downtown
Revitalization Initiative (DRI).

As of June 30, 2025, the DRI grant funds had not yet been received, and the bridge loan remained
outstanding. On November 10, 2025, subsequent to year-end but prior to the issuance of the financial
statements, the loan was renewed and converted into a five-year promissory note with a fixed
interest rate of 7.5%. The Organization intends to repay the loan in full upon receipt of the DRI grant
proceeds.

Current debt consists of the following at June 30:

2025 2024
Debt, current
Note payable, current $ 6,186 $ 62,340
Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt consists of the following at June 30:
2025 2024
Note payable to NBT bank issued November 10, 2025 $ 62,340 $ -
Less current maturities
Debt, current
Note payable, current (6,186) (62,340)
Less current maturities (6,186) (62,340)
Net long-term debt $ 56,154 $ (62,340)

26

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



Docusign Envelope ID: 62B265C4-9529-486B-ABDD-5FCECBFE01C8

Chenango County Council of the Arts, Inc
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

The aggregate amounts of principal maturities and sinking fund requirements of long-term debt
outstanding at June 30, 2025 are as follows:

Future

Year Payments
2026 $ 6,186
2027 11,122
2028 11,990
2029 12,943
2030 13,962
Thereafter 6,137
Total long-term debt $ 62,340

Unused Financing Commitments

At June 30, 2025, the Organization had $80,000 of unused lines of credit with banks to be drawn upon
as needed, with interest at 1% above the prime rate.

12. Net Assets With Donor Restrictions

Net assets with donor restrictions are available for the following purposes as of June 30:

2025 2024

Subject to expenditures for specified purpose:

Scholarships $ 6,998 % 5,998

Grants to teachers 1,050 1,050

Promise to give - auditorium lease 214,648 217,313
Total net assets subject to expenditures for specified purpose 222,696 224,361
Subject to restriction in perpetuity:

Perpetual trust held by others 544,414 518,489
Total net assets with donor restrictions $ 767,110 % 742,850

The sources of net assets released from restrictions are as follows for the year ended June 30:
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2025 2024
Scholarships $ 2,000 $ 2,000
Grants for Teachers - 5,000
Promise to give - auditorium lease 2,665 2,460
Total net assets released from restrictions $ 4,665 % 9,460

All acquisition of land, buildings, and equipment were deemed placed in service at time of release
from restrictions.

13. Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions

Net assets without donor restrictions comprises the following as of June 30:

2025 2024
Undesignated $ 126,781 % 133,831
Board designated endowment 431,664 410,885
Total net assets without donor restrictions $ 558,445 $ 544,716

14. Endowment

The Organization's endowment consists of unrestricted funds established for a variety of purposes. Its
endowment includes funds designated by the governing board to function as endowments. Net assets
associated with endowment funds, including funds designated by the governing board to function as
endowments, are classified and reported board-designated net assets.
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Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization's Board of Directors has interpreted the enacted version of Uniform Prudent
Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) as allowing the Organization to appropriate for
expenditure or accumulate so much of an endowment fund as the Organization determines is
prudent for the uses, benefits, purposes, and duration for which the endowment fund is established,
subject to the intent of the donor as expressed in the gift instrument. Unless stated otherwise in the
gift instrument, the assets in an endowment fund shall be donor-restricted assets until appropriated
for expenditure by the Board of Directors.

Endowment net assets consist of the following at June 30:

2025 2024
Endowment net assets
Investments $ 422,356 % 401,482
Cash and cash equivalents 9,308 9,403
Total endowment net assets $ 431,664 $ 410,885

Changes in endowment net assets for the year ended June 30 are as follows:
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Without Donor
Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets, July 1, 2023 $ 396,427 $ 396,427
Investment return:
Interest and dividends 11,703 11,703
Net appreciation (depreciation), realized and unrealized 25,316 25,316
Total investment return 37,019 37,019
Investment fees (2,740) (2,740)
Accumulated investment return distributed (19,821) (19,821)
Change in endowment net assets 14,458 14,458
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2024 410,885 410,885
Endowment net assets, July 1, 2024 410,885 410,885
Investment return:
Interest and dividends 11,815 11,815
Net appreciation (depreciation), realized and unrealized 32,403 32,403
Total investment return 44,218 44,218
Investment fees (2,895) (2,895)
Accumulated investment return distributed (20,544) (20,544)
Change in endowment net assets 20,779 20,779
Endowment net assets, June 30, 2025 $ 431,664 $ 431,664

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

Under this policy, as approved by the Board of Directors, the endowment assets are invested in a
manner that is intended to yield the highest rate of return with a moderate level of investment risk.
The approved investment allocations are cash and equivalents of 0% - 20%, fixed income investments
20% - 60% and equity investments 40% - 60%. The allocation is reviewed, and discussions take place
between the investment committee and investment advisor. The investment committee meets at
least twice a year to maximize the rate of return and reduce the investment risk.
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Spending Policy and How the Investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

Total returns generated by the endowment fund may be used for ongoing operations of the
Organization, but may not exceed 5% of market value of the fund at June 30 prior to the current
yearend. The Board of Directors in authorizing expenditures of endowment funds must consider
several factors including: duration and preservation of the fund, purpose of nonprofit and fund,
general economic conditions, the possible effect of inflation and deflation, expected return and
appreciation of assets, other resources, and investment policy of the fund. The principal shall not be
invaded in the absence of critical or unusual circumstances and requires the approval of the Board of
Directors at the recommendation of the Finance Committee. Earnings not used to supplement the
operating budget shall become part of the fund’s principal.

15. Revenue from Contracts with Customers

Revenue is recognized when promised goods or services are transferred to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Organization disaggregates revenue from reciprocal contracts by types of service and payor
source as this depicts the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of its revenue and cash flows as
affected by economic factors. The Organization primarily offers goods and services to the public
throughout Chenango County. As a result, the Organization's contracts and resulting revenue are
directly impacted by the regions demand for these goods.
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Performance Obligations

The Organization’s performance obligations are explicitly stated in customer contracts and are
satisfied either at a point in time or over time, depending on the nature of the service:
« Admissions: The Organization satisfies its performance obligation when the event or
performance occurs.
« Program and Workshop Fees: Performance obligations are satisfied over time as the program
or instruction is delivered.
« Memberships: For memberships that include tangible benefits (e.g., discounted tickets, early
access), revenue is recognized over the membership period on a straight-line basis.
« Gallery Sales: Performance obligations are satisfied at the point of sale when control of the
artwork transfers to the customer.

Significant Judgments

The Organization makes the following significant judgments in applying ASC 606:

« Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance obligations, particularly for multi-
session workshops and memberships with bundled benefits.

« Assessing whether the Organization is acting as principal or agent in gallery sales. The
Organization has concluded it acts as a principal and recognizes revenue on a gross basis.

« Estimating variable consideration, such as discounts or refunds, and applying constraints to
ensure revenue is not overstated.

« Allocating transaction price to multiple performance obligations in bundled arrangements,
based on observable standalone selling prices.

16. Related Party Transactions

To support the Organization, the board members will make various contributions to the Organization.
Transactions to related parties during the year were immaterial. Various board members are also
employees of businesses where the Organization has investment and loan accounts.
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17. Fair Value Measurements

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following is a description of the valuation methodologies and inputs used for assets and liabilities
recognized in the accompanying statements of financial position measured at fair value on a recurring
basis.

Mutual Funds

Mutual funds include fixed income and equity funds. The Organization holds open-ended mutual
funds that are registered with the SEC. These funds are required to publish daily net asset values
(NAV) and to transact at that price. The mutual funds held by the Organization are deemed to be
actively traded. Market price is reported at the closing NAV at the statements of financial
position date.

Beneficial Interest in Funds Held in Trust by Others

The Organization estimates the fair value of beneficial interest in funds held in trust by using the fair
market value of the trust assets. The Organization considers the measurement of its beneficial
interest in the perpetual trusts to be a Level 3 measurement within the fair value measurement
hierarchy because even though that measurement is based on the unadjusted fair value of trust
assets reported by the trustee, the Organization will never receive those assets or have the ability to
direct the trustee to redeem them.

The following table presents information about assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a
recurring basis and indicates the level of the fair value measurement based on the observability of the
inputs used:
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Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable  Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Fair Value
June 30, 2025
Assets
Mutual funds:
Fixed income
Inflation-protected bond $ 59,526 ¢ - - % 59,526
funds
US taxable bond funds 106,138 - - 106,138
Global bond funds 4,202 - - 4,202
High yield taxable bond 12,769 - - 12,769
funds
Total 182,635 - - 182,635
Equities
US large cap funds 109,457 - - 109,457
US mid cap funds 13,032 - - 13,032
US small cap funds 13,043 - - 13,043
International funds 56,980 - - 56,980
Emerging market funds 21,793 - - 21,793
Real asset funds 25,416 - - 25,416
Total 239,721 - - 239,721
Total mutual funds 422,356 - - 422,356
Beneficial interests in perpetual - - 544,414 544,414
trusts
Total assets $ 422,356 $ - $ 544,414 $ 966,770
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Quoted Prices Significant
in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable  Unobservable
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total Fair Value
June 30, 2024
Assets
Mutual funds:
Fixed income
Inflation-protected bond $ 36,994 - - % 36,994
funds
US taxable bond funds 118,310 - - 118,310
Global bond funds 4,060 - - 4,060
High yield taxable bond 20,618 - - 20,618
funds
Total 179,982 - - 179,982
Equities
US large cap funds 94,413 - - 94,413
US mid cap funds 10,320 - - 10,320
US small cap funds 10,455 - - 10,455
International funds 52,951 - - 52,951
Emerging market funds 20,478 - - 20,478
Real asset funds 32,883 - - 32,883
Total 221,500 - - 221,500
Total mutual funds 401,482 - - 401,482
Beneficial interests in perpetual - - 518,489 518,489
trusts
Total assets $ 401,482 - % 518,489 ¢ 919,971
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18. Correction of Immaterial Prior Period Error

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, management identified a group of outstanding checks issued in
prior periods that remained uncleared and were deemed unlikely to be cashed. These items, totaling
($2,773), were primarily the result of duplications and administrative oversight. In accordance with ASC 250,
Accounting Changes and Error Corrections, the cumulative amount was evaluated and determined to be
immaterial to the financial statements. As such, the adjustment was recorded in the current year as an
increase to cash and miscellaneous income. Management has reviewed and updated internal reconciliation
procedures to prevent recurrence.

19. Subsequent Event

The Organization has evaluated events and transactions that occurred between June 30, 2025 and
November 26, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were available to be issued, for
possible disclosure and recognition in the financial statements. Events occurring after that date have
not been evaluated to determine whether a change in the financial statements would be required.
On November 10, 2025, the Organization refinanced its outstanding bridge loan by entering into a
five-year promissory note with NBT Bank. Because the refinancing was finalized prior to the issuance
of these financial statements, the loan has been presented as long-term debt as of June 30, 2025, in
Note 11.
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